
 

 
Telephone Enquiries: Ben Caulfield - Policy and Overview & Scrutiny Officer,  
Email:  michael.cunliffe@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Wednesday, 27 October 2021 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Thursday, 4 November 2021 at 3.00 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Paddy Short (in the Chair) 
 
Councillors Carole Haythornthwaite, Michael Hindley, Patrick McGinley, Andrew Clegg, 
Tim O'Kane, Noordad Aziz and Michael Miller 
 
Cooptees: Bernard Dawson, Doug Hayes and Stephen Button 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1.   Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2.   Minutes of Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
To submit the Minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 9th 
September 2021 for approval as a correct record. 
 
Recommended                     -   That the Minutes be received and approved as a 
correct record. 
 

3.   Appointment of Co-optees  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer submits a report to inform the Committee of the 
approval of the proposed Co-optees by Full Council as set out in the report. 
 
Recommended       -   That the Committee note that the Council approved the 
reappointment of Bernard Dawson MBE and the appointment of Doug Hayes and 

 

Public Document Pack



 

Page 2 of 2 

 

Stephen Button as co-optees to the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
until the end of the Municipal Year 2022/23.  
 

4.   Waste and Recycling Update  (Pages 13 - 20) 
 
 
To update Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the Council’s Waste and 
Recycling Service. 
 
Recommended - Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee to note 
the report and make any comments. 
 

5.   Local Economic Impact of Covid-19  (Pages 21 - 34) 
 
To update the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the impact of COVID-19 
on Hyndburn’s economy. 
 
Recommended - That the Committee notes the report. 
 

 
 



 
1 

 
RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

 
Thursday, 9th September, 2021 

 
Present:  Councillor Paddy Short (in the Chair),  

Councillors Noordad Aziz (Vice Chair), Andrew Clegg, Michael Hindley, 
Tim O'Kane and Carole Haythornthwaite 
 

  

  

Apologies: Councillors Patrick McGinley and Sajid Mahmood 
 

 
89 Apologies for absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations 

 
Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Patrick McGinley and Joe 
McIntyre (Executive Director of Finance). 
 
Councillor Sajid Mahmood was absent from the meeting. 
 
There were no declarations of interest or dispensations. 
 

90 Minutes of Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 20th July 2021 were submitted for approval as a correct 
record. 
 
Resolved - That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct 

record. 
 

91 Review of Council Reserves 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive, Joe McIntyre, submitted a report to inform the Committee of 
the financial reserves of the Council up to the end of March 2021. 
 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Resources presented the report on Reserve Levels as at 
31st March 2021.  She referred to: 
 

 The administrative process of managing Council reserves. 

 The impact of cuts on services and staff numbers. 

 The impact of unexpected costs, eg. Brexit, the pandemic, insurance claims. 

 The use of Reserves. 
 
Members requested responses to the following: 
 

 Reference was made to appendix 1 (pages 12-13 of the report):  
- Invest to Save Fund -0.21 - an explanation of what this was. 
- Implementing Welfare Reform £610 - an explanation as to why this amount had 

been over allocated. 
- EU Exit Funding Reserve – to know if there had been an end date given for this 

and details of what it had been spent on and the rules attached to how it works. 
- Covid-19 Grant Reserve and the likelihood that this would disappear soon. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2.



 
 
 

 

 
2 

- Summer Fun (£1,226.50) – what this was. 
- Economic Development Fund and what this was spent on (-£185,000) 
- Communities Right to Bid, Communities Right to Challenge and Communities 

Right to Buy – more information required on these. 

 Request for Members to be given more information on money coming into the 
Council, how it is allocated and how it is used. 

 
The Cabinet Portfolio Holder for Resources reported that she would liaise with the Deputy 
Chief Executive and forward on responses to the questions submitted by Members, as 
outlined above. 

Resolved - That the report be noted. 
 

92 Performance Review 2020/21 (KPIs) 
 

The Policy Manager, Stuart Sambrook, submitted a report to update the Committee on the 
Council’s latest performance review which monitored service area performance against key 
priorities set out in the Corporate Strategy using key performance indicators (KPIs) which 
could be linked up to corporate priorities whilst trying to achieve the Council’s aims and 
objectives.   

Members raised the following issues: 

 Ensuring that there was responsibility for enforcement in areas such as littering and 
dog fouling after the pandemic. 

 An increase in the number of verbal abuses towards Council staff since the 
pandemic. 

 Improvement in communication between Council staff and the public after the 
pandemic with the implementation of home working and greater reliance on 
technology. 

 The Council’s webpage needs to be more user-friendly. 

 If the Council had taken any action to increase employment from the BAME 
community and a request of the breakdown of all representative groups.   

 Disposal of community properties – who decides on the sale price? 

 Why does the Council use PATROL as this is outside the Council remit? 

Responses to the above issues were as follows: 

- That the increase in abuse behaviour by the public could, partly, be down to an 
increase in mental health issues and there was ongoing training for staff to deal with 
these situations. 

- The Policy Manager would contact the Planning Department in respect of improving 
public accessibility to their webpage. 

- The Head of Human Resources and Policy would contact the IT Department with 
regards to the comment relating to the Council’s website and making it more user 
friendly. 

- Details of the Council’s effort to encourage job applications from all parts of the 
community were provided.   

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
3 

- The Planning and Regeneration Departments would fix market values on land. 

- The issue relating to the use of PATROL in the borough would be looked into by the 
Overview and Scrutiny Officer. 

Resolved (1) That the Committee endorse and support the approach 
being taken in Hyndburn to meet the requirements of 
the Council’s aims and objectives; 

 (2) That the comments from Members, as set out above, be 
noted. 

 
 
 
 
 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee ; Resources Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

DATE: 20th October 2021; 4th November 2021 

REPORT OF: Cllr Jenny Molineux, Chair of the Communities and 
Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cllr 
Paddy Short, Chair of the Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee   

REPORT AUTHOR: Ben Caulfield, Scrutiny and Policy Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Appointment of Co-optees 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To inform the Overview and Scrutiny Committees of the co-optee appointments made 

by Council on 23rd September 2021. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
That the Committees note the following: 
 
 
2.1 That Council approved the reappointment of Bernard Dawson MBE as co-optee to the 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
2.2 That Council approved the reappointment of Paul Barton as co-optee to the 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
2.3 That Council approved the appointment of Jean Battle MBE as co-optee to the 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
2.4 That Council approved the appointment of Kimberley Whitehead as co-optee to the 

Communities and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
2.5 That Council approved the reappointment of Bernard Dawson MBE as co-optee to the 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3.



 

 
2.6 That Council approved the reappointment of Doug Hayes as co-optee to the 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
2.7 That Council approved the appointment of Stephen Button as co-optee to the 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
2.8 That Council approved that the above appointments be made until the end of the 

2022/23 Municipal Year. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 The Councils Constitution, Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule C2 states: 
 

“Up to four members of the public may be appointed to each Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee as non-voting co-optees, if they are deemed to have relevant experience of 
matters falling within the remit of that Overview and Scrutiny Committee”.  
 
(i) Co-optees may be appointed following nomination by a councillor or following an 
application received directly from a member of the public.  

 
(ii) Applications received directly from the public will be considered first at the relevant 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. The Committee will consider the knowledge and 
experience of the applicant relevant to the terms of reference or work programme of 
the Committee. If the majority of the Overview and Scrutiny members support the 
appointment of the applicant, the proposed appointment will be presented to Council 
for approval. 
 
(iii) Nominations received from councillors will be presented to the Council for approval, 
if supported by the Chair of the relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee. In reaching 
a decision, the Council will consider the knowledge and experience of the nominee 
relevant to the terms of reference or work programme of the Committee.” 
 
The requirement for co-optees to be non-political was considered by Council in a report 
earlier on the agenda for this meeting, with the recommendation that this requirement 
be removed for the reasons set out in that report. 
 

3.2 The list below shows those who were nominated as co-optees by the Communities and 
Wellbeing Committee alongside the reasons for nomination, at its meeting on 8th July 
2021. 

 
- Bernard Dawson MBE – is an Honorary Freeman of the Borough, having served as 

a District and County Councillor for many years. Bernard has been previously 
appointed to Overview and Scrutiny Committees as both a Councillor and more 
recently as a co-optee. 
 

- Paul Barton is an Honorary Alderman, former Councillor, previous Mayor and a 
local businessman. Paul has all the attributes to bring a common sense private 

Page 8



 

sector business argument to the role of Overview and Scrutiny Committees. Paul 
has been a Scrutiny co-optee since 2016. 

 
 

- Jean Battle MBE is an Honorary Alderman and former District and County 
Councillor. During her near 30 year role as a Councillor, Jean has been Leader of 
Hyndburn Borough Council and a Cabinet member at Lancashire County Council. 
Jean has strong links with many local charities and was awarded an MBE in 2020. 
Jean’s experience will add real value to the Communities and Wellbeing Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee.  
 

- Kimberely Whitehead has been an active member of the community in Hyndburn 
for a number of years. She was very active within the Hyndburn Hub while it was 
established and has now gone on to be a trustee at Hyndburn CVS. Kimberley is 
Secretary of Hyndburn Green Spaces Forum as well being a committee member of 
ACE. She is also involved with many of the charities and community groups in 
Hyndburn including being Secretary of Hyndburn Baby Bank. She has a keen 
interest in Scrutiny and has attended several meetings as a member of the public. 

            
3.3 The following were nominated as co-optees by the Resources Committee at its 

meeting on 20th July: 
 

- Bernard Dawson MBE is an Honorary Freeman of the Borough, having served as a 
District and County Councillor for many years. Bernard has been previously 
appointed to Overview and Scrutiny Committees as both a Councillor and more 
recently as a co-optee. 
 

- Doug Hayes is an Honorary Alderman and former Councillor, who served as a 
Councillor for Oswaldtwistle for 24 years, was Mayor in 2000/01 and the Chair of 
the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee for several years. His experience 
could add value to the Committee. 
 

- Stephen Button is a former Councillor who served on the Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee previously, notably playing an active role in the green review 
conducted in 2019. 

 
3.4 Cllr Paddy Short, Chair of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee has since 

nominated Paul Barton to fill the vacant co-optee position on the Resources Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee. Should the Committee approve, this will be put back to 
Council for decision. 

 
. 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 
4.1 Not applicable 
 
 
5. Consultations 

Page 9



 

 
5.1 None 
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

None 

Assessment of risk 
 

None 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

Not Applicable 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 
7.1 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Communities and Wellbeing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 8th July 2021 
 
 https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2628&Ver

=4 
  
 Agenda, reports and minutes of the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 

20th July 2021  
 
 https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2657&Ver

=4 
 
 Agenda, reports and minutes of Council on 23rd September 2021 

https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2601&Ver
=4  

 
  
 
 
  

Page 10

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2628&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=2628&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2657&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=132&MId=2657&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2601&Ver=4
https://democracy.hyndburnbc.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=2601&Ver=4


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

            

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and  Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 4 November 2021 

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Paul Cox – Deputy Leader – Environmental 
Services 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Riley – Executive Director (Environment) 

TITLE OF REPORT: Waste and Recycling Update  

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government Act 
1972, Schedule 12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
1.1 To update Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the Council’s Waste and Recycling 

Service. 
 
2. Recommendations  
2.1 Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee to note the report and make any comments. 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 Service Provision during Covid 19 Pandemic 
3.1.2 Throughout the pandemic, waste services staff have been working to maintain normal services 

and other than a short period where the Council had to suspend bulky waste collections so it 
could prioritise waste collections, (which included the Council having to crew up an additional 
collection vehicle), it really has been service as normal for Hyndburn’s residents. The 
management team work very closely with the operational staff and union to ensure a safe 
working environment. This included, provision of suitable PPE, staggering start and break times, 
providing additional vehicles / allowing staff to use their own vehicles so reducing the number in 
the cabs and provision of on-site testing facilities.  

 
3.2.3 The Branch Chair of Unison, the main union representing front line staff, was so pleased with 

the support provided, they highlighted the Council at a regional level as best practice. The fact 
that there were only a small number of positive tests within the service throughout the pandemic 
shows the procedures implemented helped reduce the spread between crews helping to 
maintain essential public services throughout. 

  

Page 13

Agenda Item 4.



 

 

3.2 National Indicators   
3.2.1 All local authorities are required to input their waste data into the National WasteDataFlow 

system, which calculates individual Council statics / percentages / Indicators allowing high 
level comparisons between Councils. However, different recycling options, number of garden 
properties and provision of food waste collections all have an effect on the figures.  

 
3.2.2 The Council’s performance for 2020/21 can be shown through the following tables. These are 

provisional figures not confirmed/signed off and will not be published by the Government until 
at the end of this year. 

 
NI191: Residual Household Waste (kilograms per Household) 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 

HH waste not sent for recycling, 
reuse or composting (tonnes) 

4,273 4,251 4,088 3,755 16,365 

Number of households 37,080 37,080 37,080 37,080 37,080 

Residual HH Waste (Kg) 115 115 110 101 441 

 
84a – Household Waste Collection (Kilograms per Head) 

 
2019/20 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 

Waste Collected (ton) 22,786 6,721 6,662 6,158 5,969 25,512 

Population 81,043 81,043 81,043 81,043 81,043 81,043 

Waste Collection per 
Head (Kg) 

281 83 82 76 74 315 

 
84b – Household Waste Collection % Change on Previous Year 

 
2019/20 

Total 

 2020/21 

Waste Collected (ton) 22,786 25,512 

Population 81,043 81,043 

Waste Collection per 
Head (Kg) 

282 315 

 
192 - Percentage of HH waste sent for Reuse, Recycling or Composting 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 

HH waste sent for reuse, 
recycling or composting (ton) 

2,447 2,411 2,073 2,214 9,147 

Total HH Waste Collected 6,721 6,663 6,159 5,970 25,512 

Reuse, Recycling and 
Composting Rate (%) 

36.4 36.2 33.7 37.1 35.9 

 
Percentage of HH Waste sent for recycling (BVPI82a Comparator) 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 

HH dry recycling (ton) 1,901 1,909 1,816 2,057 7,682 

Total HH Waste collected 6,721 6,663 6,159 5,970 25,512 

Dry Recycling Rate (%) 28.3 28.7 29.5 34.5 30.1 

 
  

Page 14



 

 

Percentage of HH Waste sent for composting or anaerobic digestion (BVPI82b) 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Total 

 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 

HH Composting (ton) 547 503 257 158 1,465 

Total HH Waste collected 6,721 6,663 6,159 5,970 25,512 

Composting Rate (%) 8.1 7.6 4.2 2.7 5.7 

 
3.2.3 The Council’s provisional recycling figure for 2020/21 at 35.9%, shows an increase from the 

levels of 33%-34% seen over previous years.  
 
3.2.4 The latest published Government figures for Local Authority Collected Waste Statistics Local 

Authority data, (see link within Section 7 - background papers) is for the period 2019/20 and 
highlights Hyndburn Council as 9th Nationally for the Lowest Household Waste Generation per 
Head with 281.2 Kg (the lowest being 216.7 Kg). However, the provisional rate for 2020/21 
has increased and most likely due to the lockdown/restrictions where all members of the 
household being at home and Household Waste Recycling Centres being closed.  

 
3.2.5 Figures also show the recycling rates for each Council. At 34.54%, Hyndburn is significantly 

below, (25 percentage points) those high performing Councils with recycling rates over 60%. 
The main explanation for the difference is the quantity of compostable waste in their recycling 
figure. Of the eleven Councils highlighted as having an overall recycling rate above 60%, nine 
have a larger rate for their compost stream than their dry stream. Basically, these Councils 
have very large numbers of garden properties and/or collect compostable/food waste.  

 
3.2.6 It would seem unfair to compare the Council’s overall recycling rate with those Councils who 

collect far higher quantities of compostable waste. However, when you split the dry stream, 
(paper, card, glass, cans, plastics, batteries, textiles etc.) away from the compostable stream, 
(garden and food) five Councils actually have a dry recycling rate lower than Hyndburn and the 
highest is only 5 percentage points above. The table below highlights the eleven Councils with 
a recycling rate above 60% and the split between dry rate and compostable rate (rates are 
rounded up).  

 
Local Authority Collected Waste Statistics - Local Authority data (2019/20) 

Authority Dry Rate  
% 

Compostable Rate 
% 

Total Rate 
% 

Three Rivers DC 30.6 33.5 64.1 

South Oxfordshire DC 28.2 35.8 64.0 

East Riding of Yorkshire Council 30.2 33.1 63.3 

Vale of White Horse DC 29.4 33.9 63.3 

St. Albans City and DC 27.8 35.2 63.0 

Surry Heath BC 29.2 33.7 62.9 

Derbyshire Dales DC 26.8 35.1 61.9 

Rochford DC 24.8 36.5 61.3 

North Somerset Council 33.6 27.0 60.6 

Stratford-on-Avon DC 22.3 38.2 60.5 

East Devon DC 32.6 27.9 60.5 

    

AVERAGE 28.7 33.6  

    

Hyndburn  28.7 5.7 34.5 

Page 15



 

 

3.2.8 Another area where fair comparisons could be made, is around the number/types of materials 
households can present for recycling at their doorstep. The Council has been offering its residents 
the opportunity to recycle their paper, cardboard, waxed cartons, glass, cans, plastics, (which 
including pots and tubs), textiles and household batteries for almost 10 years now and further items 
such as mattresses, timber, TV’s / electric appliances and white goods can also be recycled through 
the Council’s free Bulky Collection service. The tables below provide some further information around 
the most popular bulky items requested by residents (rounded up) and percentage split showing how 
many items are being requested for collection each time. 
 
 

Most requested items 

Mattresses 4,850 

Sofas 4,200 

Bed bases 2,800 

Chairs  2,400 

Fridges, freezers 2,300 

Carpets, underlay, carpet tiles 2,100 

Wardrobes and drawers 1,300 

Washing machines, tumble dryers, dishwashers 1,200 

TV’s 1,000 

 
  

1 item 9% 

2 Items 47% 

3 Items 23% 

4 Items 12% 

5 Items 6% 

6 Items 3% 

 
3.3 Other Services 
3.3.1 The Council provides a collection/disposal service for the safe removal of sharps from 

domestic properties via a licenced contractor, which also includes those families with large 
quantities of hygiene waste generated by medical reasons. Hyndburn Council is responsible 
for the collection costs and Lancashire County Council for the disposal costs. 

 
3.3.2 The Council offers local businesses a Commercial Waste collection service through a single 

vehicle/crew. Numbers fluctuate during the year as customers come and go but on average 
there are around 400 customers who pay the collection and disposal costs and around 80 
customers that only pay the collection cost (as set out in National Legislation). The Council 
offers all customers the option to recycle their paper/card and glass and also currently looking 
at the possibility of adding plastic and cans in with the glass stream. If the Council were able to 
offer a mixed glass/cans/plastics collection, the costs of sorting the materials into their 
separate streams would have to be passed on to customers. 

 

Page 16



 

 

3.3.4 The Council has provided 320 litter bins and 450 dog bins for residents to use across the 
Borough, with most litter bins being emptied at least twice a week and dog bins once a week. 
Many bins have a sticker highlighting the collection day/s, but a litter bin will be always be 
emptied if a hand sweeper goes past. Given the current level of resources, it is not possible to 
increase the number of litter or dog bins due to the collection round being at full capacity as it 
would not be sensible for the Council to erect further bins if it could not guarantee to empty 
them. 

 
3.4 External Funding 
3.4.1 Lancashire County Council operate a small funding scheme to support districts to reduce 

residual waste, increase recycling, reduce contamination in recyclables and promote re-use. 
The fund aims to be flexible and nonprescriptive to provide the most relevant support for 
districts and the County looks preferentially for bids with match funding. 

 
3.4.2 The 2020 fund looked for projects that address the challenges facing districts over sustaining 

public awareness of and engagement with recycling. Unfortunately, Hyndburn’s bid for funding 
to promote a higher quality of recycling was not successful. However, the 2021 fund looked to 
address the logistical challenges facing districts over infrastructure and the layout of depots, 
yards and bunkers. This time Hyndburn was successful in securing £35k towards the cost of 
repairing the storage bays and gates within the Council’s transfer station in Church.  

 
3.3  Future Plans 
3.3.1 Over the last 5 years electric vehicle technology has moved on to a point whereby the Council 

can seriously consider replacing some of its smaller diesel works vans with electric ones. The 
same cannot be said for the some of the Council larger vehicles, (over 3.5 tonnes) as many 
are only just starting to become available and have not yet seen the period of mass 
testing/operating in the industry. 

 
3.3.2 When researching what electric vehicles would be suitable to be used as part of the Council’s 

fleet, it has become evident that prior to procuring any electric vehicles the Council needs to 
have electric vehicle charging points available for these vehicles within its depots. There is not 
only a need to assess how many electric vehicle charging points would be needed to keep the 
fleet running but also whether the mains electrical supply to the various depots is sufficient. 
Therefore the Council has now appointed a suitably experienced external consultant to provide 
a detailed report relating to the installation of electric vehicle charging points / supply within 
Council depots.  

 
3.3.3 Once the charging infrastructure is in place, the move over from diesel to electric vehicles will 

be considered as part of the normal replacement programme i.e. as and when each vehicle is 
due for replacement (although 10 small vans/4x4’s have been identified for replacement within 
the next 12 months). Further changes will be dependent on a suitable electric vehicle being 
available in the market, that it is suitable for the needs of the service and the Council can 
financially afford to change given electric mechanical sweeping vehicles are currently around 
£200k against the diesel version at £85k and electric refuse collection vehicles around £400k 
against the diesel version at £190k. However, once production ramps up / competition 
between manufactures, prices usually come down.  

 
3.3.4 Currently the Council sends its non-recyclable waste to landfill, (Whinney Hill) but due to the 

design of electric refuse collection vehicles, it will not be possible for Hyndburn to make the 

Page 17



 

 

swop from diesel until Lancashire County Council, (the Disposal Authority) provides the 
Council with alternative tipping facilities on a ‘hardstanding’. However, all 10 of the Council’s 
vehicles now have electric lifters. 

 
3.3.5 The drive to recycle more materials remains, with officers continuing to make requests to 

Lancashire County Council for adding carpets and soft furnishings. However, as the Collection 
Authority, we cannot collect these items for recycling as the County Council would need to 
provide the Council with an outlet and pay for the recycling of these materials. 

 
3.4 Legislation 
3.4.1 The Council collects an average of 200+ tonnes of fly-tipped waste/litter from the Borough’s 

open spaces each month and a further 300+ tonnes off the back streets each month. To try 
and tackle the blight and upset to local residents caused by fly tipping, the Lancashire Waste 
Partnership agreed to co-sign a letter sent to the Sentencing Council in July this year, 
(covering 158 local authorities and 10 professional bodies). The letter asked the Sentencing 
Council to consider the following areas for reviewing and possibly updating of the Definitive 
Guideline (2014). 

 

 Court imposed fines and costs versus Fixed Penalty Notices 

 Introduce stronger means testing, and Court Fine “maximum payment periods” 

 Community Based Sentences 

 Use of More (and longer) Suspended Sentences 
 
3.4.2 At the same partnership meeting in July, Carole Taylor, Waste Officer from Pendle and Chair 

of LARAC, (The Local Authority Recycling Advisory Committee) delivered a presentation on 
the progress of the Resource and Waste Strategy, (RAWS) which was published in December 
2018 and the forthcoming Environment Bill. Whilst there are many areas still to be clarified, the 
outcomes may well have a financial impact on the Council. 

 
3.4.3 RAWS has the following Key Strategic Aims: 

 

 To work towards all plastic packaging placed on the market being recyclable, reusable 
or compostable by 2025 

 To work towards eliminating food waste to landfill by 2030  

 To eliminate avoidable plastic waste over the lifetime of the 25 Year Environment Plan 

 To double resource productivity by 2050 

 To eliminate avoidable waste of all kinds by 2050 
  
3.4.4 Following the publication of RAWS, the Government ran three consultations between February 

and May 2019 on three key policy areas within the Strategy (see below). DEFRA had 
published its responses to the three consultations in September 2019 and a second round of 
consultations had originally been planned for the Summer/Autumn of 2020. However, due to 
delays associated with the Covid pandemic, these were only completed in July 2021. 

 

 Consistent Collections 
This consultation related to having consistent recycling collections, to improve the 
quantity and quality of municipal waste recycled in England, and to achieve a national 

Page 18



 

 

recycling rate of 65% by 2035. If implemented, these could directly impact on local 
authority waste services as the proposals looked for all waste collection authorities to:  
 

I. Collect the same core set of dry recyclable materials from households. 
II. Have separate weekly food waste collections from households. 

III. Have separate minimum fortnightly collection of green waste (possibly free). 
 

 Deposit Return Scheme (DRS)  
This consultation had sought views on proposals to introduce a DRS for drinks 
containers in England, Wales, and Northern Ireland from 2023, where the customer 
paid an upfront deposit which would be redeemed on returning the container to the 
retailer/designated return point. 
 

 Extended Producer Responsibility on Packaging (EPR) 
Initial reforms to EPR had been outlined in the first consultation where the government 
signalled their intent to introduce EPR for packaging, so that producers paid the full 
costs of dealing with the waste they produced. One of the key governing principles for 
packaging EPR was for payments to Local Authorities to be fair and transparent and for 
these to include the cost of collecting packaging waste in the residual waste stream. 

 
3.4.5 There are other policy areas within RAWS around a review of the Controlled Waste 

Regulations - consultation on amending them in relation to household waste recycling centres 
regarding fees/charging and opening hours, with possible minimum service standards. The 
two-tier working - review the effectiveness of current arrangements for local authority waste 
management and recycling credits - two tier cost sharing reviewed subject to any packaging 
reform. 

 
3.4.6 The Environment Bill is the primary ‘over-arching’ legislation needed for the strategy proposals 

highlighted above. The Bill sets out four priority areas around air quality, water, biodiversity 
and resource efficiency and waste reduction. Chapter three, part three, sections 47 to 68 
contain the parts of the Bill covering waste and resource efficiency. 

 
3.4.7 There will be secondary legislation affecting councils approximately one year after this Bill 

becomes law, meaning consultations could take place on this secondary legislation next year. 
The Bill completed its passage through the House of Commons and entered the House of 
Lords at the end of May, only the first and second reading has been completed. It was 
expected to gain ‘Royal Assent’ by autumn 2021. However, it is now unlikely to do this before 
the Glasgow Climate Talks taking place in 1 November. 

 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
4.1 Update report to Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee only. 
 
5. Consultations 
5.1 With Portfolio Holder. 
 
6. Implications 
 

Page 19



 

 

Financial implications (including any future 
financial commitments for the Council) 

None from this report 

Legal and human rights implications None from this report 

Assessment of risk None from this report 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be completed 
in relation to policy decisions and should be 
attached as an appendix to the report.  

None from this report 

 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 National Waste Data/Statics 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data
/file/966043/LA_and_Regional_Spreadsheet_1920_rev.xlsx  

 
 Environmental Bill and Current Status 
 https://bills.parliament.uk/bills/2593  
  
8. Freedom of Information 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 

Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information Act 
2000. 

Page 20

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/966043/LA_and_Regional_Spreadsheet_1920_rev.xlsx
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/966043/LA_and_Regional_Spreadsheet_1920_rev.xlsx
https://bills.parliament.uk/bills/2593


Page 1 of 13 
 

REPORT TO: Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

DATE: 4th November 2021 

PORTFOLIO:  

REPORT AUTHOR: Amirah Chati, Policy Apprentice 

Ben Caulfield, Scrutiny and Policy Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Local Economic Impact of Covid-19 

EXEMPT 
REPORT (Local 
Government Act 
1972, Schedule 
12A) 

Options Not applicable 

KEY DECISION: Options If yes, date of 
publication: 

 

 
  

1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To update the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the impact of COVID-

19 on Hyndburn’s economy. 
 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the Committee notes the report. 
 
 
3. Reason for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1. The COVID-19 pandemic has been a global challenge, but as growing evidence 

highlights, the brunt of its impact was faced by the most deprived communities. 
 
3.2. Ranking 18th (out of 317) for the most deprived local authority area on the 2019 Indices 

of Deprivation and 9th with regards to health, Hyndburn faced the compounded 
challenge of confronting COVID-19 with a history of enduring poverty. 
 

3.3. Members have received regular Covid-19 related updates over the last 18 months. 
These updates mainly focussed on health related statistics, number of vaccinations, 
positive cases, hospital admissions and sadly deaths. This report will focus mainly on 
economic data, and has been produced via desktop research of freely available public 
information by the Policy Team. 
 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5.



Page 2 of 13 
 

3.4. The economic impact of Covid-19 is difficult to measure with certainty at the current 
time. The information in this report therefore provides local economic data pre and post 
pandemic to support Councillors understanding. 
 

 
Furlough  

 
3.4 Furlough figures in Hyndburn followed the path of the pandemic. At the peak, 11,400 

people were furloughed in June 2020 across numerous sectors.  The most recent 
figures available at the time of writing this report show 1,600 Hyndburn residents were 
furloughed at the end of July. 

 

  

Lockdown one & 
beginning of easing 

Lockdown two Lockdown three Current stats 
 

March-20 
to May- 20 

Jun-20 Nov-20 Jan-21 
End of July 

(provisional) 
 
 

England 6,445,800 7,600,900 3,209,500 3,886,900 1,314,400 
 

Blackburn with Darwen  16,500 19,400 7,300 8,900 3,200 
 

Blackpool  17,200 20,000 9,900 11,400 2,900 
 

Burnley 11,200 13,100 4,400 5,400 1,800 
 

Chorley 13,300 15,400 6,300 7,700 2,400 
 

Fylde 8,700 9,800 5,000 5,700 1,700 
 

Hyndburn 9,800 11,400 3,900 4,800 1,600 
 

Lancaster 14,200 16,500 7,100 8,900 2,100 
 

Pendle 12,100 14,000 5,100 6,300 2,100 
 

Preston 15,400 17,900 7,300 8,600 3,000 
 

Ribble Valley 7,900 9,000 3,800 4,700 1,600 
 

Rossendale 8,400 9,600 3,300 4,300 1,400 
 

South Ribble 12,500 14,300 5,300 6,500 2,000 
 

West Lancashire 11,800 13,800 5,400 6,800 2,500 
 

Wyre 12,100 13,800 6,000 7,200 2,500 
 

 
 

3.5. The Governments Furlough scheme formally ended on 5th October. Local data is not 
yet available to show if and how this has affected rates of benefit claimants and 
unemployment. 

 
Benefit Claimants  
 
3.6. Hyndburn saw a 4.2% rise in the working population claiming over one year of the 

pandemic, an increase in 2,055 individuals. This was the third-highest rise in 
Lancashire. 

 
 Table 2: Increase in Claimants from March 2020 to March 2021. (ONS, 2021) 
  Figure (+) Percentage points (+) 

United Kingdom 1,601,135 3.8 

North West 173,650 3.8 

Blackburn with Darwen 3,685 3.9 

Page 22



Page 3 of 13 
 

Blackpool 5,925 7.0 

Burnley 2,160 4.0 

Chorley 1,790 2.5 

Fylde 1,665 3.6 

Hyndburn 2,055 4.2 

Lancaster 2,140 2.3 

Pendle 2,810 5.1 

Preston 3,435 3.7 

Ribble Valley 825 2.3 

Rossendale 1,685 3.8 

South Ribble 1,540 2.3 

West Lancashire 1,850 2.7 

Wyre 2,620 4.1 

 
 
3.7. The number of claimants peaked in February 2021 at 4,130 (8.4% of the population). 

The latest available figures show a promising reduction, at 3,390 (6.9%) in September 
2021. These trends are reflected both regionally and nationally. 

 
Unemployment 
 
3.8. Table 3 below details the change in the unemployment rate across Lancashire. 

Hyndburn has seen an increase of 0.7% and is ranked fourth highest in Lancashire at 
a 5% unemployment rate. That corresponds to 2,000 unemployed individuals for the 
latest period (April 2020 – March 2021). Pre pandemic levels of unemployment were 
around 1800 for Hyndburn.  

 
Table 3: Unemployment rates and figures for Lancashire (ONS, 2021) 

  

Rate of unemployment % Number  

2019 2020 2020 figures 

United Kingdom 3.9 4.5         1,539,935  

Blackburn with Darwen 5.5 5.4                 3,700  

Blackpool 5.6 5.5                 3,500  

Burnley 5.6 5.1                 2,000  

Chorley 3.1 3.6                 2,000  

Fylde 2.3 3.6                 1,300  

Hyndburn 4.3 5.0                 2,000  

Lancaster 4.5 4.4                 3,200  

Pendle 4.3 4.3                 2,000  

Preston 3.7 4.6                 3,100  

Ribble Valley 1.9 2.5                    800  

Rossendale 3.0 3.7                 1,400  

South Ribble 2.6 2.9                 1,800  

West Lancashire 4.0 3.7                 1,900  

Wyre 2.9 3.7                 2,100  

 
 
 

Page 23



Page 4 of 13 
 

3.8. The Governments Furlough scheme formally ended on 5th October. This may have a 
knock on effect to employment figures however data is not yet available. 

 
Jobs and earnings 
 
3.9. The number of job vacancies is not published at local level. Nationally, as of 

September 2021 there are 1,197,000 vacancies across all industries. This is a 
significant increase on pre pandemic levels which stood at 795,000 in February 2020. 

 
3.10. Of those with jobs, and those seeking them, the table below highlights the change in 

earnings and number of jobs before and during the pandemic. 
 
 

Table 4: Change in earnings and number of jobs prior to and during the pandemic 

(ONS, 2020) 

  Earnings Jobs 

  2019 2020 2019 2020 

ENGLAND £25,150 £26,055 18,549,000 18,609,000 

NORTH WEST £23,741 £24,334 2,461,000 2,364,000 

Blackburn with Darwen £21,260 £21,221 44,000 44,000 

Blackpool £19,486 £19,808 41,000 40,000 

Burnley £22,175 £22,647 32,000 25,000 

Chorley £25,016 £24,991 44,000 41,000 

Fylde £27,608 £28,980 27,000 25,000 

Hyndburn £22,725 £22,459 27,000 25,000 

Lancaster £22,907 £24,130 47,000 48,000 

Pendle £22,207 x 31,000 27,000 

Preston £21,706 £23,509 46,000 48,000 

Ribble Valley x £28,909 25,000 24,000 

Rossendale £20,841 £21,428 22,000 24,000 

South Ribble £22,953 £24,459 43,000 42,000 

West Lancashire £24,151 £24,311 39,000 32,000 

Wyre £22,418 £23,219 33,000 34,000 

 

3.11. With regards to earnings, Table 4 shows that Hyndburn's gross annual earnings are 

estimated to have been £3,500 less than the national average but around the average 

in the North West. It had, however, reduced by around £200 from 2019, similar to 

Chorley and BwD. 

Business 

3.12. There has been increases in the number of businesses in Hyndburn during the period 
of the pandemic, with micro, small and medium businesses all increasing between 
2020 -21 and large business numbers remaining the same.  

 
Table 5: Number of businesses in Hyndburn by size 

Page 24



Page 5 of 13 
 

 
 Business size 2020 2021 

Micro (0-9 Employees) 1985 2025 

Small (10-49 Employees) 255 270 

Medium (50-249 Employees) 60 65 

Large (250+) 5 5 

3.13. The pandemic has affected most sectors of business to a degree. Retail was 
signific

antly 
affecte

d, 
particul

arly 
during 

the 
early 

stages 
of the 
lockdo

wns 
were 
non- 

essenti
al 

shops and businesses where forced to close temporarily. 
 
Table 6: Vacancy rates over 6 years (Local Data Company, 2021) 

 
 
 

3.14. The above table details the vacancy rates from 2016-Feb 2021. The figures show the 
vacancy rate in different areas, whilst the colour represents the change from the 
previous year. Red indicates an increase in the rate of vacancies and green a 
decrease. 
 

3.15. Nationally the vacancy rate stands at 13.7%, as it had in 2020. This figure is a 
decrease from 2019 and highlights the start of the COVID-19 impact on high streets. 
The North West has a higher vacancy rate than Great Britain and England, and 
Lancashire even higher at 18%. This highlights the particular challenges of deprivation, 
employment opportunities and struggling town centres that Lancashire face. 
 

3.16. Of the Lancashire boroughs and towns in the table, Accrington currently has the 
highest vacancy rate, Rawtenstall has the lowest. Bacup has seen a fall in vacancy 
rates from its original figures of 33.3% in 2016. Positively, despite the effects of the 
pandemic, Hyndburn as a whole has seen a slow fall in vacancies since 2019. This is 
positive news, with the majority of areas seeing an increase in vacancies as a result of 
the pandemic. 

 

 
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Feb-21 

Accrington 21.1 21.5 24.8 24.0 24.0 25.2 

Nelson 24.6 21.1 20.4 20.4 23.8 23.8 

Blackburn 20.8 18.4 16.9 19.2 19.2 22.8 

Preston 18.0 16.9 16.9 18.8 20.5 22.1 

Hyndburn 22.5 20.7 22.5 24.5 23.9 22.0 

Bacup (CLG in Rossendale) 33.3 31.3 33.8 27.7 20.9 20.9 

Burnley 15.7 18.1 16.0 17.3 18.4 18.4 

Lancashire 15.0 15.5 15.6 16.7 17.1 18.0 

North West 14.2 14.1 14.0 14.9 15.3 15.8 

Rossendale 16.1 15.0 18.5 16.7 15.3 15.3 

Pendle 12.6 11.3 12.9 13.4 15.2 15.1 

GB 11.2 11.2 11.5 12.1 13.7 13.7 

England 10.5 10.6 11.0 11.6 13.0 13.2 

Rawtenstall (town in Rossendale) 6.3 7.1 9.4 7.2 9.7 9.7 

Page 25



Page 6 of 13 
 

 

Table 7: Change in Vacancy rates 2019-2021 (Local Data Company, 2021) 

Pre-pandemic and current 

 

 
 
 
Business Grants 

 
 

3.17. Since March 2020, Government has announced a series of grants and reliefs available 
to businesses, many of which have been delivered by local authorities using data on 
our business rates registers.  Other financial support schemes such as employee 
furlough, self-employed grants and bounce back loans were delivered by Central 
Government through agencies such as HMRC. 
 

3.18. To date, businesses in Hyndburn have received £36 million in local authority 
administered grants and reliefs. 

  
3.19. At the peak of the initial wave of grants, the business rates team received hundreds of 

calls and emails a week and since March 2020 we have answered over 6,000 emails in 
total.  For context, business rates email enquiries are normally around 1,500 per year. 

 
3.20. There have been two types of grants rolled out during the pandemic: 

 
Government Grants:  These grants are listed below. In addition, rates relief schemes 
provide a reduction of up to 100% relief on a business rates bill. Rates relief schemes 
for 2020/21 have included relief for nurseries, pubs and the retail, hospitality and 
leisure sector.  These reliefs have been funded in full by Government.  
National schemes and discretionary scheme- To provide grants to businesses that 
were not eligible for other grants, the Government provided funding to local authorities 
for discretionary schemes.  Hyndburn Council adopted three discretionary schemes, 
approved by Cabinet in July 2020 and November 2020. 
 
 

-6.8 

-2.5 
-1.4 

0.9 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.6 1.6 1.7 
2.5 

3.3 3.3 3.6 

-8.0

-6.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

C
h

an
ge

 in
 V

ac
an

cy
 R

at
e

 

Page 26



Page 7 of 13 
 

 
 

Table 8: Grant Schemes (HBC, 2021) 

Scheme Value Number of 
Businesses 
Supported 

Overall 
Value of 
Support 

March 2020 
Small Business Grant 
Fund 
 
(National scheme) 

£10,000 one-off grant 1699 £16.9m 

March 2020 
Retail, Hospitality 
and Leisure Grant 
 
(National scheme) 

£10,000 one-off grant for businesses with a rateable 
value of less than £15,000 
£25,000 one-off grant for business with a rateable 
value between £15,000 and £51,000 
One grant per unique property 

91 
 
124 
 

£910k 
 
£3.1m 
 

March 2020 
Expanded Retail 
Discount Scheme 
 
(National scheme) 

100% business rates relief applied as a reduction to the 
business rates bill, no cash alternative is available 

340 £8.1m 

March 2020 
Nursery Discount 
Scheme 
 
(National scheme) 

100% business rates relief applied as a reduction to the 
business rates bill, no cash alternative is available 

12 £64k 

July 2020 
Local Business 
Discretionary Grant 
 
(HBC scheme) 

Value of grants at the discretion of HBC: A policy 
developed and awards in line with Government 
guidance 
£5000 
£10,000 
£25,000 

 
 
 
105 
15 
12 

 
 
 
£525k 
£150k 
£300k 

October 2020 to 
November 2020, and 
December 2020 
 
Local Restriction 
Support Grant for 
Closed Businesses 
(National Scheme) 

£667 per qualifying two week period for businesses 
with a rateable value of less than £15,000. 
 
£1,000 per qualifying two week period for businesses 
with a rateable value between £15,000 and £51,000 
 
£1,500 per qualifying two week period for businesses 
with a rateable value of £51,000 or more. 

204 grants 
paid 
 
63 grants 
paid 
 
10 grants 
paid 

£147k 
 
 
£66k 
 
 
£16k 

November 2020 
National Lockdown 
Grant 
 
 
(National scheme) 

£1,334 per 28 day period for businesses with a rateable 
value under £15,000 
 
£2,000 per 28 day period for businesses with a rateable 
value between £15,000 and £51,000 
 
£3,000 per 28 day period for businesses with a rateable 
value over £51,000 

451 
 
 
57 
 
 
15 

£602k 
 
 
£114k 
 
 
£16k 

Page 27



Page 8 of 13 
 

November 2020, 
backdated to August 
2020 
Local Restriction 
Support Grant for 
Open Businesses 
 
(HBC scheme) 

Value of grants at the discretion of HBC: A policy 
developed and awards in line with Government 
guidance 
 
Businesses with a rateable value 
Up to £934 per 28 day period for businesses with a 
rateable value under £15,000 
Up to £1,400 per 28 day period for businesses with a 
rateable value between £15,000 and £51,000 
Up to £2,100 per 28 day period for businesses with a 
rateable value over £51,000 
 
Businesses without a rateable value 
Up to £934 per 28 day period for small/micro 
businesses with up to 50 employees 
Up to £1,400 per 28 day period for medium-sized 
businesses with up to 250 employees 
Up to £2,100 per 28 day period for large businesses 
with more than 250 employees 

 
 
 
 
 
67 
 
15 
 
1 

 
 
 
 
 
£215k 
 
£72k 
 
£7k 

November 2020 
Local Restriction 
Support Grant – 
Sector 
 
(National scheme) 

£667 per qualifying two week period for businesses 
with a rateable value of less than £15,000. 
 
£1,000 per qualifying two week period for businesses 
with a rateable value between £15,000 and £51,000 
 
£1,500 per qualifying two week period for businesses 
with a rateable value of £51,000 or more. 

1 £2k 

December 2020 
Christmas Support 
Payment 
 
(National scheme) 

£1000 one-off grant per wet-led pub 64 £64k 

January 2021 to 31 
March 2021 
National Lockdown 
Grant 
 
(National scheme) 

£2001 per 42 day period (05 January 2021 to 15 
February 2021), and £2096 per 44 day period (16 
February 2021 to 31 March 2021) for businesses with a 
rateable value under £15,000 
 
 
£3,000 per 42 day period (05 January 2021 to 15 
February 2021), and £3143 per 44 day period (16 
February 2021 to 31 March 2021) period for businesses 
with a rateable value between £15,000 and £51,000 
 
 
£4,500 per 42 day period (05 January 2021 to 15 
February 2021), and £1714 per 44 day period (16 
February 2021 to 31 March 2021) for businesses with a 
rateable value over £51,000 

1200 grants 
paid 
 
 
 
 
147 grants 
paid 
 
 
 
 
27 grants 
paid 

£2.4m 
 
 
 
 
 
£463k 
 
 
 
 
 
£19k 

January 2021 to 
March 2021  
Closed Business 
Lockdown Payment 
 
(National scheme) 

£4000 one-off grant for businesses with a rateable 
value under £15,000 
 
£6,000 one-off  grant for businesses with a rateable 
value between £15,000 and £51,000 
 

587 
 
 
76 
 
 

£2.3m 
 
 
£456k 
 
 

Page 28



Page 9 of 13 
 

£9,000 one-off grant for businesses with a rateable 
value over £51,000 

23 
 
 

£207k 

April 2021 
Restart Grant  
 
(National scheme) 

£2667 one-off grant for non-essential retail businesses 
with a rateable value under £15,000 
 
£4,000 one-off  grant for non-essential retails 
businesses with a rateable value between £15,000 and 
£51,000 
 
£6,000 one-off grant for non-essential retail businesses 
with a rateable value over £51,000 
 
£8000 one-off grant for hospitality, accommodation, 
leisure and personal care businesses with a rateable 
value under £15,000 
 
£12,000 one-off  grant for hospitality, accommodation, 
leisure and personal care businesses with a rateable 
value between £15,000 and £51,000 
 
£18,000 one-off grant for hospitality, accommodation, 
leisure and personal care businesses with a rateable 
value over £51,000 

204 
 
 
23 
 
 
 
9 
 
 
352 
 
 
 
54 
 
 
 
11 

£544k 
 
 
£92k 
 
 
 
£54k 
 
 
£2.8m 
 
 
 
£648k 
 
 
 
£198k 

Additional 
Restriction Support 
Grant. 
 
The Council 
administered this 
scheme over nine 
phases from 
December 2020 to 
October 2021 
 
(HBC scheme) 

Value of grants at the discretion of HBC: A policy 
developed and awards in line with Government 
guidance 
 
Businesses with a rateable value 
Up to £934 per 28 day period for businesses with 
a rateable value under £15,000 
 
Up to £1,400 per 28 day period for businesses 
with a rateable value between £15,000 and 
£51,000 
 
Up to £2,100 per 28 day period for businesses 
with a rateable value over £51,000 
 
Businesses without a rateable value 
Up to £934 per 28 day period for small/micro 
businesses with up to 50 employees 
 
Up to £1,400 per 28 day period for medium-sized 
businesses with up to 250 employees 
 
Up to £2,100 per 28 day period for large 
businesses with more than 250 employees 
 

2814 grants 
paid over 
the nine 
phases of 
the ARG 
scheme 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

£2.5m 

April 2021 
Expanded Retail 
Discount Scheme 

100% business rates relief applied as a reduction to the 
business rates bill for period 01 April 2021 to 30 June 
2021, reducing to a 66% business rates relief reduction 

258 £1.5m 

Page 29



Page 10 of 13 
 

 
(National scheme) 

for the period 01 July 2021 to 31 March 2022, no cash 
alternative is available 

April 2021 
Nursery Discount 
Scheme 
 
(National scheme) 

100% business rates relief applied as a reduction to the 
business rates bill for period 01 April 2021 to 30 June 
2021, reducing to a 66% business rates relief reduction 
for the period 01 July 2021 to 31 March 2022, no cash 
alternative is available 

11 £48k 

 
 
3.21. In addition to business grants, the government rolled out a national Test and Trace 

Support Payment scheme (TTSP) in order to provide financial support for those 
required to isolate as a result of the trace and trace scheme. This was due to findings 
referenced by Sage that willingness to self-isolate was three times lower among less 
affluent people. Below is the information for Hyndburn as of May 2021: 

 
Table 9: Applications for TTSP in Hyndburn (HBC) 

Applications processed 2966 

Approved 1007 

Refused 1931 

In progress 28 

 
Table 10: Spending for TTSP in Hyndburn (HBC) 

 Spend   Fund remaining  

Main fund £        387,500.00 £           81,000.00 

Discretionary fund £        116,000.00 £         128,000.00 

Total £        503,500.00 £         209,000.00 

 
 
Children in Low Income Households 
 
3.22. No Child Poverty data has yet been published with the impact of the pandemic. The 

data used from the DWP is the most up to date with a pre-pandemic baseline. 
However, this has been included in the report as a reference point once more upto 
date data is published. 

 
Table 11: Number of children in low income households (DWP, 2021)  

  

2015 2020 
Change 

in % 

Number Proportion (%) Number Proportion (%) % 
United Kingdom* 1,888,287 16% 2,428,284 19% 3.6% 
Pendle 5,414 29% 7,270 37% 8.3% 
Blackburn with 
Darwen 

10,125 30% 12,639 37% 6.8% 

Burnley 4,618 26% 6,186 33% 6.7% 
Hyndburn 4,395 27% 5,583 33% 6.3% 
Blackpool 5,271 21% 6,522 25% 4.1% 

Page 30



Page 11 of 13 
 

Preston 5,690 21% 7,268 25% 4.0% 
Rossendale 2,619 19% 3,101 22% 2.7% 
Lancaster 3,628 16% 4,283 17% 1.9% 
Wyre 2,450 14% 3,029 17% 2.8% 
West Lancashire 2,846 15% 3,353 17% 2.5% 
South Ribble 2,176 11% 2,975 15% 3.6% 
Chorley 2,399 12% 3,143 14% 2.7% 
Fylde 1,344 11% 1,805 14% 3.3% 
Ribble Valley 1,000 10% 1,126 11% 1.2% 
 
3.23. Table 17 shows that in 2020 the proportion of children in low income households in the 

UK was at 19%- half of Lancashire authorities saw a proportion less than that. Of the 
other half which saw a larger proportion of children in low income households, 
Hyndburn had the second highest with Burnley at 33%, an increase (for Hyndburn) of 
6.3% from 2015. Pendle and BwD saw the largest proportion of children in low income 
households at 37%, Pendle having increased by 8.3% from 2015 and BwD by 6.8%. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 12: Number of children in low income households- Wards 
 

 

2015 2020 
Change 

in % 

  Number Proportion (%) Number Proportion (%) % 
Central 1,044 56% 1,149 65% 9.0% 

Spring Hill 643 44% 833 51% 6.8% 

Peel 283 28% 404 41% 12.9% 

Netherton 290 32% 362 39% 7.4% 

Barnfield 240 33% 332 39% 5.9% 

Church 424 35% 497 35% 0.1% 

Milnshaw 154 19% 266 29% 9.2% 

Altham 208 17% 313 27% 9.7% 

St Andrew's 163 19% 221 26% 6.9% 

Rishton 227 20% 307 26% 6.3% 
Clayton-le-
Moors 

120 16% 176 22% 6.2% 

Immanuel 124 17% 149 21% 4.6% 

Huncoat 126 15% 163 19% 4.5% 

St Oswald's 123 13% 173 17% 4.4% 

Overton 166 14% 184 16% 1.7% 

Baxenden 55 9% 57 9% 0.7% 

 

Page 31



Page 12 of 13 
 

3.24. Of the sixteen wards in Hyndburn, two wards had more than half of the children in low 
income households in 2020: Central and Spring Hill at 65% and 51% respectively. All 
other wards, besides Baxenden, had over 15% of children in low income households. 
The greatest change in the proportions from 2015-2020 was in Peel, which saw a 
12.9% rise in the proportion of children in low income households. Church saw the 
least change of 0.1%. 
 

House Prices 
 
3.25. To support the housing market during these uncertain times and stimulate potential 

buyers to invest in real estate, last summer the government temporarily increased the 
amount at which the tax is paid to £500,000, for property sales. The hike was phased 
out, ending on 31st September 2021. 

 
3.26. The North West and Lancashire as a whole are below the averages in England, and 

the gap is slowly increasing as house prices in other parts of the country steeply 
increase. In 2010, the difference between England median prices and Lancashire's 
was £50k. In 2020, the difference was around £90k. 
 

3.27. That is not to say Lancashire is not seeing a rise in median house prices in the last 10 
years.  Hyndburn, whilst having the second-lowest median house prices in Lancashire, 
saw a £9k hike in prices between 2019 and 2020. At an 11.5% rise, this was the 
biggest on-year increase in 10 years 
 

Table 13: Change in average house prices over 10 years (ONS, 2021) 

  
Year ending Sep 

2010  Sep 2019  Sep 2020 

England  £180,000 £242,000 £249,000 

Ribble Valley £174,000 £230,000 £231,000 

Fylde £170,250 £198,000 £205,000 

West Lancashire £165,000 £193,000 £184,950 

Chorley £149,995 £170,000 £174,500 

North West £132,000 £165,000 £170,000 

South Ribble £143,950 £166,000 £167,000 

Wyre £141,750 £155,000 £164,500 

Lancaster £133,995 £155,000 £160,000 

Lancashire £130,000 £155,000 £159,000 

Preston £123,000 £145,000 £150,000 

Rossendale £113,500 £135,000 £140,000 

Blackburn with Darwen £98,200 £122,000 £120,000 

Blackpool £105,000 £114,000 £118,000 

Pendle £85,000 £109,998 £113,000 

Hyndburn £85,000 £101,000 £110,000 

Burnley £75,000 £92,750 £97,500 

 
 

 
 

Page 32



Page 13 of 13 
 

4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 
 

4.1 Not applicable 
 

5. Consultations 
 

6. Implications 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 

None arising from this report 

Legal and human rights 
implications 

N/A 

Assessment of risk N/A 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  

No CFA required 

 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985:  

List of Background Papers 
 
 

7.1 There are none 
 
 
 
 

Page 33

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes of Last Meeting
	3. Appointment of Co-optees
	4. Waste and Recycling Update
	5. Local Economic Impact of Covid-19

